
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE
APRIL 12, 2011

3:35 P.M.

Councilwoman Ladd, Chairman, called the meeting of the Public Works Committee to order
with Councilmen Rico, Scott, Benson, Robinson, Berz, Gilbert, McGary, and Murphy present.
City Attorneys Michael McMahan and Patrick Bobo and Shirley Crownover, Assistant Clerk to
the Council, were also present.

Others present included John Bridger, Larry Zehnder, Dan Johnson, Steve Leach, Capt. Snyder,
Randy Ray, Gary Hilbert, Chief Parker, Lee Norris, Jim Templeton, Alice Cannella Daisy Madison,
Gayle Keown, Vickie Haley, Richard Beeland and Paul Page.

On motion of Councilman McGary, seconded by Councilwoman Robinson, the minutes of the
previous meeting were approved.

Mr. Leach proceeded with agenda items, beginning with Resolutions (d), (e) and (f). These are
all temporary right-of-way uses. Resolution (d) is for Rita’s to use 100 Market Street for the
installation of a sign and canopy. Adm. Leach noted that the Staff checks for clearance.
Resolution (e) is for Graphic Works, LLC to use 429 Broad Street for the installation of a sign
along a portion of the right-of-way. This sign meets requirements. Councilwoman Robinson
questioned the name of the business. It was thought it was Moon Pie. Resolution (f) is an
unusual situation for James C. Berry located at 605 Chestnut Street for the installation of a
parapet cap atop the Liberty Tower that will project into the right-of-way. This is a new name
for the building. An architectural drawing of the area of the canopy was shown.

Resolution (g) authorizes Change Order with H&H Brown for liquid oxygen provided to the
Moccasin Bend Wastewater Treatment Plant between April 3, 2009 and April 17, 2009, relative
to Contract No. W-07-003 in the amount of $80,000. Mr. Leach explained that they had been
working with various parties to come to this agreement; that Attorney Bobo handled this.

Attorney Bobo explained that this was in regards to improvements to the Oxygen Plant; that General

Electric had two starters installed, and we had unsuccessful starts and some repairs needed to be made,

and we had to shut down; that when it was restarted the last time, the transformer failed; that the

transformer was 28 years old, and the life expectancy is 20 years, and this is well past its life expectancy,

and it is weakened by so many restarts. The transformer had gone down, and we needed oxygen to

operate. H & H Brown had the contract for improvement. They did provide oxygen, and this is the

change order for it. He went on to say that in the past year we have been negotiating as to what caused

the problems. This is the end result of the negotiations that have been going on with Adm. Leach and

the City Attorney’s office. We will pay $80,000; GE will pay $40,000. This will resolve all contracts with

H & H.



Page 2

Councilman McGary confirmed that the life expectancy of a transformer is 20 years and this one is 28

years old. He asked if this was our only transformer? Ms. Cannella explained that it was the only one

operating the Oxygen Plant; that we have many more that are older than 20 years. Councilman McGary

asked if we would be replacing them? Ms. Cannella explained that we test them each year; that we

don’t know when they will fail; that if testing indicates, we will repair. Councilman McGary confirmed

that after their life expectancy, they are either tested or there is a failure.

Councilwoman Scott stated that she had had a conversation with Ms. Cannella and with Patrick Bobo;

that she had to confess that her frustration goes back to when we let the Contract in the beginning in

2007; that we totally rehabbed the generator and a presentation was made to the Council at that time

amounting to $5.5 million dollars; that a presentation was made to the Council and Councilman Benson

questioned this; that this presentation indicated that this rehab put us in good stead with three to four

years of study. She noted that the transformer went out, and we had to purchase oxygen; that if we

can’t generate, we have to bring it in, and we approved a blanket contract. She stated that she had

concerns that we were spending this amount of money and still having to buy liquid oxygen--$132,000—

that this confused her; that H & H Brown were supplying oxygen, and this is additional; that there was a

lawsuit and here we are now trying to settle this; that this ends it, and the good news is that the oxygen

generator is settled for the future. She stated that these are the reasons she had asked where we were

going with this.

Councilman Murphy asked Ms. Cannella if when the testing is done, and we believe there could be a

failure, and the equipment needs to be taken out of service, could she give a ballpark cost of a

transformer? She responded that it would depend on the size—that this one was $76,000. He asked

her if we had smaller ones, and the answer was “yes”—that the system operates as a whole and is

complicated. Councilman Murphy asked if a failure in one part causes problems, why we don’t get a

schedule to replace transformers? He noted that when they fail, it results in a lot of expense. He

mentioned unilateral waste into the river, which is more global. He questioned if scheduling was on the

books? Ms. Cannella responded that after January, we developed an Electrical Work Plan and

transformers will be a part of this; a rating will be given as to replacement. He asked about the status of

the SOP Manual and Ms. Cannella indicated that she would ask Mr. Stewart about this. She stated that

this would be put together in several different parts and a consultant is reviewing the communication

system. Councilman Murphy asked if we could expect that the whole system will have an SOP Manual

before the end of this term? Ms. Cannella stated that she would discuss this with Mr. Stewart.

Resolution (j) authorizes the waiver of the landfill disposal fee associated with the Great

American Clean-Up in an amount not to exceed $l,500. Mr. Malone explained that this is an

annual thing that is nationwide.



Page 3

AGENDA ITEMS FOR APRIL 19, 2011

Resolution (a) authorizes eminent domain proceedings on Jenkins Rd. for Shallowford Rd. at

Jenkins Rd. Intersection improvements. Mr. Malone explained that funding was set aside to

purchase right-of-ways; that there are seven tracts of land to be purchased; that we have two

people that we are continuing to settle with; that one of the issues is change of ownership and

the other involved a holding company in California; that we are looking over offers now. He

noted that three are signed, and they are willing to accept the appraisal cost we offered.

Resolution (c) is an eminent domain against Grace Baptist Church. Mr. Malone reported that

on Sunday night, they accepted the City’s offer, and the purchase can be approved. He went on

to say that we continue to work with GBH Holdings, but it will probably land up in eminent

domain. He stated that our plan is to start construction in mid July or the first of August.

Councilwoman Scott asked if the objections of the owners were concerning price? Mr. Malone

responded the price and also one does not like the round-about because he thinks it will hurt

his development; that he had been opposed to this, and we were working with him and had

agreed to install drive-ways; that a line had been drawn in the sand with TDOT; that we were

trying to make him more “whole”. Councilwoman Scott indicated that the amount of money

offered seemed respectable to her; that she thought the appraiser had given the benefit of a

doubt.

Councilman Benson thanked Public Works for bringing this project to fruition; that it was on the

books to be done in 2001, and it was long overdue, and he appreciated them getting this to the

forefront.

Councilman Gilbert asked if it would help out with the traffic and was told “yes”. He stated that

he appreciated this.

Resolution (f) authorizes an Agreement with Volkert, Inc. for professional services relative to

Contract No. W-10-012-101, Evaluation of Telemetry and SCADA Systems for the Moccasin

Bend Wastewater Treatment Plant and remote facilities, in an amount not to exceed $127,500.

Mr. Malone stated that this stems off of our previous conversation that we had about the

reliability of the plant. He asked Steve Meyers to talk about this.

Mr. Meyers explained that this project evaluates the communication system in order to see

which one would be best. It is evaluation of communication with the Plant to make sure it is

reliable and reports will be generated. In the past we have had problems with latency and

getting information back; that the present system is incapable of handling information and data

as it is over 15 years old; that they will evaluate which system is best.



Page 4

Councilwoman Scott asked if it would let us know if there is an overflow or obstruction? Mr.

Meyers mentioned data points—that the actual flow coming through the pump is one data

point; that it will tell which characteristic is an issue. Councilwoman Scott mentioned overflows

in the past and asked if this system will guarantee that we will know problems very, very early?

Mr. Meyers responded “as early as possible”; that we will know the rate at which it is rising.

Councilman McGary stated that it was his understanding that the goal was to recommend a

system. He wanted to know the range of cost? Mr. Meyers stated that the cost is part of the

Study and evaluation; that they would be looking at a dollar value and also reliability issues.

They would look at security and controllability. Councilman McGary asked Mr. Meyers, in his

expert opinion what would the range be—lowest to highest? Mr. Meyers responded that there

were a number of different factors and a large variety; that it was really difficult to say at this

stage; that they would have to go to each pump station, and it was real difficult to say; that it

could be several millions of dollars; that we might be able to apply for special funding and there

might be future grants to offset the costs. Councilman McGary asked if the goal was for this to

be covered in the next Capital Budget? Adm. Leach stated that it would be several years; that

the major system needs attention; that it could be a five-year period; that it would come out of

the Capital Budget for Wastewater. Chairman Ladd noted that she would not be able to vote

on this because of a conflict of interest with Volkert.

Resolution (g) authorizes an Agreement with Burns and McDonnell Engineering Co. for

professional services relative to Contract No. W-11-001-10l, Moccasin Bend Wastewater

Treatment Plan SF6, circuit breaker replacement, in an amount not to exceed $165,607.00. Mr.

Malone stated that this is more of our earlier conversation; that this is the main power feeding

into the Plant, and it is over 20 years old, and the breakers are no longer being manufactured.

Burns and McDonnell will be the consultant for this contract.

A representative (Tom) from the company explained that these are older installations when the

Plant was built and have been obsolete, and it is time to replace; that they will buy the

equipment and controls and have a contractor to install them; that this is very critical timing,

but that his company is very experienced and would be able to successfully work with the City

to get this accomplished; that they should be installed in less than a year.

Councilman McGary asked to what degree we are looking at equipment becoming obsolete as a

whole—that he was speaking of other equipment. Ms. Cannella responded that all pieces of

equipment will be included; that the next phase is replacement, and we will decide if we need

to repair or replace and at what rate—that it is a two-year program.



Page 5

Resolution (m) authorizes the Mayor to enter into an agreement with Hamilton County for the

Hamilton County Courts Community Service Program to pick up litter along City right-of-ways

using first-time, non-violent offenders in an amount not to exceed $60,000.00. It was noted

that this is only on city streets; that this is something that is ongoing and has been done for

years and is a good project.

The meeting adjourned at 4:00 P.M.


